
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:

Council Chamber Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding

Contact: Gregory Watkinson
Direct Dial: 01775 764599
e-mail: GWatkinson@Sholland.gov.uk

Date: 8 May 2018

Dear Councillor,

The Annual meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 16 May 2018, commencing at 
6.30 pm at which your attendance is requested. 

Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

1. Election of a Chairman 
The Chairman / Monitoring Officer will invite nominations for the election 
of a Chairman for the ensuing year.  A Chairman will then be elected 
and sign the acceptance of office.

2. Election of a Vice-Chairman 
The Chairman will invite nominations for the election of a Vice-
Chairman.

3. Apologies for absence. 

4. Minutes 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 
2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
5 - 8)



5. Declaration of Interests. 
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.)

6. Chairman's Announcements. 

7. Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet. 

8. Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6 

9. Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7 

10. Committee Minutes 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:-

a)  Governance and Audit Committee 15 March 2018  (Pages 
9 - 18)

b)  Planning Committee 10 April 2018  (Pages 
19 - 26)

11. Key Decision Plan 
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
27 - 32)

12. Constitution 
To consider variations to the Constitution (report of the Monitoring 
Officer enclosed).

(Pages 
33 - 36)

13. Political Group Regulations - Committee Seats Review 
To confirm, in accordance with the Local Government (Committees and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, alternative arrangements and to 
review political seat allocations to Committees (report of the Executive 
Manager – Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 
37 - 40)

14. Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to 
the Constitution. 
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to 
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to 
the Constitution.

15. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



16. Exclusion of the press and public 
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 (A) of the Act.

17. South Holland Centre Planned Maintenance and Essential Remedial 
Works 
To approve and fund essential maintenance and remedial works to 
South Holland Centre (report of Deputy Leader and Executive Director 
Place enclosed).

(Pages 
41 - 50)



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 11 April 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Grocock (Chairman)
H Drury (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
J Avery
P E Coupland
T A Carter
A Casson
M G Chandler

G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
R Gambba-Jones
A Harrison
J L King
C N Johnson
J D McLean
A M Newton

G A Porter
J L Reynolds
M D Seymour
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
Whitbourn
A R Woolf

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, C J Lawton, S-A Slade and C N Worth. 

In Attendance:  Chief Executive, Shared Executive Director Commercialisation 
(S151), Shared Executive Manager Governance, Shared Executive Manager Public 
Protection, Environmental Services Manager, Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
111. MINUTES 

The Council considered the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
March 2018.

DECISION:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2018 be agreed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

112. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interests.

113. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

The Chairman advised of  the sad passing of North East 
Lincolnshire Mayor, Councillor Mike Burton.

The Chairman read a thank you note from the partner of 
Councillor Clark, which thanked members and officers for their 
kind words and actions following the sad passing of Councillor 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



- 2 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 April 2018

Clark.

114. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE 
CABINET. 

There were none.

115. QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 
6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6.

116. QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 7 

Question to: The Leader of the Council
Question from: Councillor Newton
Subject: Index linking of £12 million awarded to the Council via 
Housing Infrastructure bids.

Councillor Newton asked the Leader of the Council if the £12 
million that had been awarded to the Council as a result of the 
successful Housing Infrastructure bid was ring-fenced and index 
linked. The Leader of the Council responded that the fund was 
ring-fenced but was not index linked.

117. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Policy Development Panel - 20 February 2018

DECISION
That the minutes be received.

Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

DECISION
That the minutes be received.

118. REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 27 MARCH 
2018 

Consideration was given to the report from the Cabinet meeting 
held on 27 March 2018.

Councillor Gambba-Jones introduced the report which sought 
annual capital funding of £50,000 until 2022/23 to replace 
grounds maintenance equipment which had reached the end of its 

Page 6



- 3 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 April 2018

useful life. The funding would enable the Council to refresh the 
Authority’s lawnmower inventory.

DECISION:

a) Replacement of Grounds Maintenance Equipment:

a) That Capital expenditure of up to £50,000 be approved 
for the purchase of replacement equipment for the 
delivery of the grounds maintenance service in 
2018/19, the proposed funding to come from 
appropriate reserves; and

b) That the capital equipment replacement programme for 
grounds maintenance, for annual capital expenditure of 
up to £50,000 until 2022/23 be approved.

119. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.

DECISION:

That the Key Decision Plan be received.

120. HR POLICY HANDBOOK ADDITIONS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
People and Public Protection and Portfolio Holder – Governance 
and Customer.

The Portfolio Holder – Governance and Customer introduced the 
new policies proposed for inclusion in the HR policy handbook.

DECISION:

1) That following consideration by Policy Development Panel, 
the following policies be approved;

a) Stuck Not Sick Policy
b) Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse Policy; and
c) Career Break Policy

121. NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION. 

There were none

Page 7



- 4 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
11 April 2018

122. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were none.

(The meeting ended at 6.38 pm)

(End of minutes)

INITS

INITS

INITS

INITS

Page 8



- 30 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 15 March 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
C J T H Brewis

T A Carter
P C Foyster

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Seymour.  

In Attendance:  J Cornett (Director, KPMG), H Brookes (Manager, KPMG), E Hodds 
(Head of Internal Audit, Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151), the Business Intelligence Officer, the Business 
Intelligence Officer, the Democratic Services Officer and Councillor P Coupland.

Action By
35. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none.

36. MINUTES 

AGREED:

a) The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee 
Meeting held on 14 December 2017 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

b) The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee 
Meeting held on 16 January 2018 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

37. QUARTERLY RISK REPORT Q3 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance.

Officers stated that there were no significant changes that had 
occurred during the quarter in which the meeting took place.

It was noted that a new risk would be added to the risk report for 
the next meeting, this being the impact of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act.

Councillors asked if there were any issues with the collapse of 
companies such as Carillion, and issues at Capita. Officers 

Page 9

Agenda Item 10.a)



- 31 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

answered in the negative.

Members wanted to know if the homelessness legislation was 
funded by central government. Officers did not know and agreed 
that this information would be sought and members advised in 
due course.

AGREED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

(Both Business Intelligence Officers left the meeting following 
discussion of this item.)

38. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2016/17 

The report of the Head of Internal Audit had been considered at 
the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held on 14 
December 2017. During that meeting issues were raised with 
outstanding items within the report. It was agreed that certain 
information within the report would be raised at this meeting to 
identify and update upon any items which remained outstanding 
on 14 December 2017.

Officers mentioned that what was attached were previous 
recommendations which had not yet been implemented

002A – HMO Licensing Policy

It was noted that work had been carried out on these policies. It 
was mentioned that officers wanted a comparison with policies at 
Boston Borough Council. Councillor Brewis mentioned that 
Boston Borough Council was not a Housing Landlord and that he 
was concerned by the fact that the comparison was not like for 
like. He felt that, as a Housing Landlord, South Holland District 
Council should be consulting an authority which was also a 
Housing Landlord. Officers responded that this issue was mainly 
based upon Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and that 
Boston Borough Council had significant experience with these. 
Officers stated that it was hoped that the comparison would be 
completed by the end of June 2018.

Members stated that the relevant officers should be expected to 
be in attendance at the next meeting that this topic was discussed 
at.

002C – HMO non licensable properties

Page 10



- 32 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

002E – HMO Procedures

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

002G – HMO Website

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

004A - Car Park Income Unders and Overs

Officers noted that new ticket machines had now been procured 
and changes were underway. Members wanted to know if data 
had ever been compared with other authorities who had abolished 
car parking charges. Officers replied that there appeared to be no 
correlation between a lack of parking charges and the success of 
a town centre.

Members felt that the new ticket machines were a good step 
forward.

Some members voiced concern with the potential fraud risk with 
card reading ticket machines. Officers responded that the 
machines were procured from a reputable source. Members 
reiterated that they meant after-purchase fraud on the machines. 
Officers stated that a degree of the onus was on the individual to 
be concerned about their own fiscal security.

Officers stated that they would generate an updated timeline for 
outstanding items.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That officers would generate an updated timeline of 
completion for items which remained outstanding.

CM 

39. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s External Audit Plan 2017/18, 
which was presented to the Committee by the Audit Manager, 
KPMG, who highlighted the following issues:

 Officers laid out the approach to the Authority’s accounts 
and risks to them. It was stated that Materiality had been 
set at £1.1 million. KPMG officers stated that the reporting 

Page 11



- 33 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

threshold was agreed at £55,000. However, it was 
mentioned that KPMG worked to a lower level than that.

 Officers stated that the Authority was the holder of £176.5 
million worth of property, plant and equipment in total. It 
was mentioned that the risk to this laid in the fact that the 
valuations were only estimates.

 KPMG officers stated that the authority was in charge of 
£37.5 million worth of pensions liabilities. Again, the risk 
involved with this laid in the fact that this value was only an 
estimate.

 Other areas of audit focus- The timetable was advanced as 
a statutory issue. It was stated that the Authority was 
required to have draft accounts prepared by the end of 
May and the final accounts signed off by the end of July.

 Value for money arrangements – Risks relating to this were 
financial resilience and the robustness of medium term 
plans.

 The audit team at KPMG remained unchanged.

 Planned audit fee was £44,537

The following issues were raised:

 Councillors asked when the next revaluation of the pension 
scheme would be. It was confirmed that it would be in a 
further 2 years time.

 Councillors asked if there would be a rebalancing of the 
ratio of contributions to pensions between employers and 
employees. Officers responded that the Government had 
implemented changes to this recently.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

(Cllr Foyster left the meeting during discussion of the above item).

40. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2016/17 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s Annual report on Grants and 
Returns 2016/17, which was presented to the Committee by the 
Audit Manager, KPMG. The following issues were raised:

Page 12



- 34 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Final report of 2017/18 

 With regard to the Housing benefit subsidy, officers stated 
that there would be 100% testing for this year in relation to 
2 specific issues and 40+% testing in relation to 7 further 
issues.

 Officers stated that adjustments were made from the 100% 
testing resulting in a £305 rise in the claim.

Housing Pooling return:

 Officers advised that there was a small increase in the fee 
due to the complexity of the work.

 Members wanted to know if errors were down to human 
error and it was confirmed that this was the case.

 Members asked if changes to Universal Credit would affect 
the Council. Officers responded that it would depend upon 
circumstances, but that it was likely that the process would 
be simplified.

 Members asked what was being done to address the 
reduction in errors. Officers responded that there was no 
single remedy  that could be implemented, but that the 
main contributors were staff training and an improvement 
in processes. It was also stated that, in the past, 
performance had been gauged by how many claims had 
been put through and not the quality of processing.

 Councillors  wanted it noted how happy they were with the 
report and how good the news included was.

AGREED:

That the report be noted

41. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit for South Holland District Council which examined the 
progress made between 1 December 2017 and 28 February 2018 
in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2017/18. The following issues were raised:

 It was mentioned that the Place review had meant that the 

Page 13



- 35 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Housing department had faced a large overhaul, which 
resulted in the Housing audit being an advisory review.  This 
would then inform the audit scope for this area in 2018/19. 

 It was stated that with regard to Procurement and Contract 
Management, new staff were in place and that an audit would 
be undertaken early in 2018/19.

  With regard to IT audits – It was confirmed that 2 audits were 
underway at the time of the meeting and would be presented 
in the next Progress Report on Internal Audit.

  It was confirmed that the priority one recommendations made 
in the audits of Section 106 Agreements and Asset 
Management were due to be completed by the end of June, 
Officers mentioned that they would get an update prepared for 
the end of the financial year.  In relation to the priority one 
recommendation made in the Environmental Protection audit 
this had now been completed.

Officers mentioned that the Compass Point Business Services’ 
audits were all already at or near the draft stage.

Members raised the following issues:

 Members questioned whether Section 106s could be variable. 
Officers responded that they needed to be unified.

 Members asked if tenancy agreements that expired should be 
put on new tenancies. Officers responded that this was 
expected and down to relevant officers to progress.

 Members questioned when the Authority would look at rent 
free periods? Officers responded that some new housing stock 
was  due to come onto the market and therefore the Council 
may wish to offer this on those properties to encourage 
businesses into the area. 

 Members questioned Issues to be addressed in the Assurance 
Review of Environmental Protection and wanted to know if 
permits that were invalid had been issued, officers confirmed 
that this had happened and also that work was being done to 
resolve this.

 Members questioned Appendix 3 to the report with specific 
reference to item 9 ‘Percentage of recommendations accepted 
by management’, wanting to know the background of the fact 
that the percentage of recommendations being agreed by 

CM 

CM 

Page 14



- 36 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

management was only 90% - Officers stated  that this was a 
recognition of the fact that this is not a ‘perfect world’ and this 
was a target, actual performance would be reported as part of 
the Annual Report and Opinion to be provided in June.

AGREED:

That the members note the progress to date with the Internal 
Audit Plan of work for 2017/18.

42. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 to 
2020/21 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.  The 
report would then serve as the work programme for the Council’s 
Internal Audit Services Contractor ; TIAA Ltd.  It would also 
provide the basis for the Annual Audit Opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.

It was noted that the Key Audits were; GDPR, Procurement and 
Contract Management and Compass Point Budget Management.

It was further noted that time was being given to the relevant team 
to progress asset management recommendations, as a limited 
assurance was concluded, and that the area would be revisited in 
quarter two of 2018/19.

Regarding Food Health and Safety, members questioned whether 
roadside cafés’ were regulated. Officers responded that these 
would be looked at on a risk basis by the team and that this could 
form part of the internal audit review.

It was stated that the progress of Leisure Procurement would be 
examined, with particular attention paid to the service areas 
readiness for the new contract.

AGREED:

That the Committee notes and approves:

a) The Internal Audit Strategy for 2018/19;

b) The Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2018/19 to 2020/21; 
and

Page 15



- 37 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

c) The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19.

43. AUDIT MANDATORY INQUIRIES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Commercialisation (S151) which confirmed the response to the 
External Audit Mandatory Inquiries.

Members were unhappy the wording in the comments section of 
the report relating to the second fraud inquiry in the report 
sounded wrong. Officers agreed to make changes and 
improvements to the wording.

AGREED:

To approve the response to the External Audit Mandatory 
Inquiries.

ES 

44. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee.

The schedule of meetings for 2018/19 was now available, and 
dates for Governance and Audit meetings had been added to the 
Work Programme.  Regular items had been transferred from the 
2017/18 municipal year to the appropriate meeting dates for the 
new municipal year.  Contributors were requested to confirm that 
the reports, and the meeting dates on which they were to be 
reported, were correct.

DECISION

That the report be noted

45. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

Members asked for clarification on the viability of investment in 
Quatari banks.  Officers responded that any investments were in 
line with the Authority’s relevant policies. Due to the political 
sensitivity of investing in such governments, there were currently 
no investments in Quatari banks.

It was noted that the Authority was already investing in local 
authorities and returns were good.

Page 16



- 38 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Members asked, with regard to Welland Homes, if money was 
being invested into Welland Homes housing. Officers responded 
that there were large amounts of investment in this area. It was 
noted that investment income was substantially better than it was 
in the previous year.. 

(The meeting ended at 7.48 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 10 April 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
D Ashby
P E Coupland
H Drury

L J Eldridge
R Grocock
C J Lawton
J L Reynolds

M D Seymour
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
P A Williams

In Attendance:  The Planning and Building Control Manager, the Planning Officer, the  
Senior Planning Lawyer and the Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor C J T H Brewis.

108. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

The Senior Planning Lawyer reported that notification had been received that 
Councillor J King was replacing Councillor C J T H Brewis as a member of the 
Committee for that meeting only.

109. MINUTES 

The Committee considered the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 7 
March 2018.

DECISION

That the minutes of the meeting be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

110. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

No interests were declared.

111. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were no questions asked under Council’s Constitution (Standing Orders).

112. H09-0562-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-0562-17 Jelson Ltd Reserved matters application for erection of 35 

dwellings and associated works – outline approval 
H09-0844-14, land off Northons Lane, Holbeach, 
Spalding 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10.b)



- 2 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 April 2018

The Chairman advised that neither Councillor Avery nor Councillor King could take 
part in the discussion or vote on the recommendation, as they had not been present 
for consideration of the original application in November 2017.  Both Councillors 
remained in the meeting but did not vote or take part in the debate.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had been previously circulated to members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recoding could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That reserved matters be approved subject to the conditions set out in section 9 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones seconded by Councillor Seymour).

113. H16-0888-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0888-17 Taylor Pearson 
Development (Drapers Place) Ltd 

Full application for demolition of disused buildings 
and construction of a residential development for 
over 55s including associated external work and 
access at Car Park and Premises, Drapers Place, 
Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had been previously circulated to members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recoding could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That the application be deferred in order to seek clarification on a number of issues 
and concerns, namely – perceived overdevelopment within a relatively small site; 
lack of parking provision for the number of residents, and how it would be 
allocated/controlled; collection of refuse from a town centre site; impact on existing 
and future amenity; access arrangements at Francis Street; whether accommodation 

Page 20

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 3 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 April 2018

would in fact be limited to over-55s and how this would be enforced; Historic England 
comments to be considered further; and clarity on where storm water would drain to.

(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones, seconded by Councillor Eldridge).

114. H04-1189-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H04-1189-17 Market Homes Ltd Full planning application for proposed residential 

development along with the demolition of Tap Bar 
and rear projections at Former Red Cow, 8 High 
Street, Donington

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had been previously circulated to members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recoding could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set out in section 9 of 
the report. 

(Moved by Councillor Grocock, seconded by Councillor Drury)

115. H04-1190-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H04-1190-17 Market Homes Ltd Listed building application for a proposed 

residential development along with the demolition 
of Tap Bar and rear projections at Former Red 
Cow Hotel, 8 High Street, Donington

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had been previously circulated to members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recoding could 
be made available by request.

Page 21

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 4 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 April 2018

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set out in section 9 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Grocock seconded by Councillor Drury)

116. H13-0056-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H13-0056-18 Mr & Mrs N Gibbons Full planning application for a residential 

development – bungalow and detached garage at 
Off Pipwell Gate, Moulton Seas End, Spalding 

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had been previously circulated to members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recoding could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That, contrary to the recommendation detailed at section 8.0 within the report, 
planning permission be granted, subject to appropriate wording being agreed by the 
Chairman’s Panel prior to confirmation in writing. 

(Moved by Councillor Drury, seconded by Councillor Tenant)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter:  Mr Julian Perowne, on behalf of the Applicant.

Note: Please see attached appendix for the wording, as agreed by the Chairman’s 
Panel meeting, held on Friday, 13 April 2018.

117. PLANNING APPEALS 

Councillors considered the report of the Development Manager which provided an 
update on recent appeal decisions.

DECISION:

That the report be noted.

Page 22

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 5 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 April 2018

118. PLANNING UPDATES. 

There were no updates.

119. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were no urgent items.

(The meeting ended at 8.54 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Appendix

Chairman’s Panel – 13 April 2018
Wording agreed for approval of the following application:

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H13-0056-18 Mr & Mrs N Gibbons Full planning application for a residential 

development – bungalow and detached garage at 
Off Pipwell Gate, Moulton Seas End, Spalding 

That, contrary to the recommendation detailed at section 8.0 within the report, 
planning permission be granted on the basis that it was considered that in this 
instance that the social and environmental impacts of the proposed development, 
such as its distance from local services, likely reliance upon the motor car to access 
local services and facilities and the development's effect upon the rural character 
and appearance of the area were outweighed by the benefits of contributing towards 
the supply of housing both in the District and in terms of meeting the applicants' 
needs and the needs of future generations.  Therefore, the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, as outlined in Paragraph 14 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, 2012 was considered to apply in this instance.  

Page 1

Minute Annex 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 4 May 2018

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 11.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Public 
Protection

Corporate 
Enforcement 
Policy

To review and update the Corporate 
Enforcement Policy creating one single 
policy for South Holland and Breckland 
Council

Meetings and discussions. Corporate 
Enforcement 
Policy

Cabinet 29 May 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Finance

Holbeach Food 
Enterprise Zone

To seek approval for the Council to 
invest in the delivery of the Holbeach 
Food Enterprise Zone

Meetings and discussions. Cabinet 29 May 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Jun 
2018

P
age 28



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process

Meetings and discussions Officer Decisions Before 
30 Jun 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Jun 
2018

P
age 29



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

To consider the adoption of the Joint 
Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy

Meetings and discussions Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

Cabinet 20 Nov 2018

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

P
age 30



If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 31

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Monitoring Officer, Maxine O'Mahony 
 

To: Council – 16 May 2018

(Author: Mark Stinson – Executive Manager for Governance)

Subject: Constitution Variations 

Purpose: To consider variations to the Constitution

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the minor variations made by the Monitoring Officer and listed in paragraph 1.2 of the 
report be endorsed and continue to have effect.

2) That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to amend Part 3 Section F1 of the Constitution to 
make it clear that where more than one officer is identified as a proper officer then each 
officer is a proper officer for matters falling within his/her respective jurisdiction.

3) That Part 3, Section F1, paragraph 15 of the Constitution be amended in accordance with 
paragraph 1.3 of this report

4) That the staffing delegations in Part 3, Section F1 of the constitution be amended in 
accordance with paragraph 1.5 of this report

5) That the definition of Planning Applications set out in Part 3, Section F3 of the Constitution be 
amended to include reference to the new form of planning application – application for 
planning permission in principle and technical details

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council’s constitution was approved by full Council at its meeting on 20 January 
2016. Under Article 14, only full Council can make amendments to the Constitution, 
although certain amendments can be made by the Monitoring Officer subject to a 
subsequent report to the Council:

a. A minor variation
b. Removal of inconsistency or ambiguity
c. To put into effect a decision of the Council or one of its committees

MINOR AMENDMENTS MADE BY THE MONITORING OFFICER

1.2 The following minor variations have been made by the Monitoring Officer, and the Council 
is now asked to endorse the same:

 Following the establishment of the new Contracts Team, references in the Contract 
Procedure Rules to the Corporate Improvement Team (who previously had 
responsibility for contract matters) have been deleted and replaced with references 
to the Contracts Team.

Page 33

Agenda Item 12.



 Inaccurate cross-reference in the definition of ‘Policy Framework’ at the beginning of 
the Constitution has been corrected – the definition cross-referenced Article 5 when 
it should refer to Article 4

 Minor error in numbering of Article 4, paragraph 4.3, has been corrected (sub-
paragraphs started with (b) instead of (a))

 Inaccurate cross-references in paragraphs 4 and 5 of Article 13 have been 
amended (they now cross reference Articles 50 and 49 respectively).

 The terms of reference for Council, in Part D of the Constitution, contained an 
inaccurate cross-reference to Standing Orders. This has been amended to refer to 
the correct Standing Orders – 63, 64 and 64 respectively.

 Standing Order 49.3 contained an inaccurate cross-reference which has been 
amended to read “paragraph 15c of Part F1” instead of ‘paragraph 6c of Part F1’

OTHER PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

1.3 There is an inconsistency in Chief Officer general powers set out in Part 3, Section F1, 
paragraph 15(c). This paragraph appoints Chief Officers to be the proper officer for 
signing notices and other documents. The paragraph ends “this delegation may not be 
delegated further subject to (e) below”. However, paragraph 15(e) makes it clear that a 
Chief Officer may appoint someone to act in his/her place in his/her absence; or when 
he/she is otherwise not available; or in accordance with any general directions given by 
the Chief Officer. The words quoted in paragraph 15(c) are therefore redundant (and do 
not appear in relation to any other proper officer appointments).  It is therefore 
recommended that the inconsistency is corrected by deleting the words “this delegation 
may not be delegated further subject to (e) below”.

1.4 In order to ensure clarity, it is also recommended that where any proper officer 
appointment refers to more than one officer holding that appointment, it be made clear 
that each of those officers are proper officer for matters falling within their respective 
jurisdictions. It is therefore proposed that the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make 
such changes.

1.5 Part 3, Section F of the Constitution contains a number of staffing delegations. Paragraph 
15 delegates to Chief Officers the power to take disciplinary action in respect staff below 
grade 3b. This paragraph should also refer to capability, and it is proposed that the 
delegation be amended accordingly.

1.6 A change in the law, brought about by the Town and Country Planning (Permission in 
Principle) Order 2017, makes provision for a new type of planning application – 
application for permission in principle and associated technical details consent. Part 3 of 
the Constitution delegates to the Director responsible for Planning, authority to determine 
planning applications (except significant applications) so long as they are considered to be 
in compliance with overall planning policies and guidance as well as Local and 
Neighbourhood Plans. There is also a mechanism for applications to be referred to 
Committee in relevant circumstances. Paragraph 3.1.2(b) of Part 3 of the Constitution 
defines planning applications for this purpose. It is therefore recommended that the 
existing definition be amended to reflect this new form of planning application.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To approve or not approve the variations or to require alternative variations.

Page 34



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To remove anomalies, address minor typographical and numbering issues and to ensure 
the constitution is kept up to date with changes in law.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Regular updates to the Constitution will ensure that it remains fit for purpose.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; 
Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more 
of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Amending the Constitution is a function that is reserved to Council

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None

Background papers:- The Council’s constitution which is available on the Council’s website

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager for Governance
Telephone Number: 07899 061277
Email: mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To: South Holland District Council Wednesday, 16 May 2018 

(Author: Lynn Eldred Lead Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Political Group Regulations - Committee Seats Review

Purpose: To confirm, in accordance with the Local Government (Committees and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, alternative arrangements and to review 
political seat allocations to Committees. 

Recommendation(s): 

1. That the following Committees continue to be appointed in accordance with 
political group regulations:

 Planning Committee 
 Governance and Audit 
 Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
 Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Appeal Committee
 Policy Development Panel

2. That the following Committees continue NOT to be appointed in accordance with 
political group regulations:

 Standards Panel
 Licensing Committee
 Committee of the Licensing Authority
 Performance Monitoring Panel
 Appeals Panel 
 Grievance Panel
 Settlements Agreements Sub-Committee

3. That committee seats be reviewed in accordance with paragraph 1.6 below.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 sets out that the default position for the 
appointment to Committees is on politically proportionate grounds.  It does however allow 
for exceptions to the political balance requirements.  South Holland District Council has 
adopted exceptions for the following Committees where political balance does not apply:

 Standards Panel
 Licensing Committee and Committee of the Licensing Authority

Page 37

Agenda Item 13.



 Performance Monitoring Panel
 Appeals Panel
 Grievance Panel
 Settlements Agreements Sub-Committee

Details of these are set out in the Constitution. Councillors will recall that appointments to 
these Committees were made at Annual Council last year for the period until May 2019

1.2 In respect of the Licensing Committee and Committee of the Licensing Authority, the 
Regulations were disapplied because the then UKIP Group did not wish to take up its seat. 
This seat was instead allocated to the Independent Group. In the case of all other 
committees and panels referred to at 1.1 above, the Regulations were disapplied in order to 
allow greater representation for the opposition Group(s).

1.3 The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 require that 
exception arrangements are agreed annually and without any member of the authority 
voting against them. There is also a requirement to review committee seats where there 
have been changes to the membership of political groups.  

1.4 The Council recently received notification that Councillor Foyster was leaving the UKIP 
group and joining the Independent group.  As a knock-on effect, there is no longer a UKIP 
group on the Council as a minimum of two members are required to form a group. In 
addition, there has recently been a by-election. As a result, there is also a need to review 
political seat allocations on committees and panels where political proportionality does 
apply.

1.5 The purpose of this report is therefore to confirm, in accordance with the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, the continuation of the alternative 
arrangements for appointments to the committees and panels listed at 1.1 above and to 
review the allocation of committee seats for the remaining committees and panels.

1.6 The impact on seat allocations, to those committees and panels which are appointed on the 
basis of political balance, is as follows:

Planning Committee – the UKIP seat becomes a non-aligned seat (and Councillor 
Williams will be the only non-aligned member) giving Conservative 11 seats, Independent 3 
seats and non-aligned 1 seat.

Policy Development Panel – the UKIP seat becomes an Independent Group seat giving 
Conservative 12 seats and Independent 4 seats.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The Council is legally required to undertake a review of committee seats. 

2.2 The Council can agree to continue the existing alternative arrangements for the committees 
and panels listed in paragraph 1.1; or can apply different arrangements.

Page 38



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To comply with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Reviewing the arrangements annually, or as soon as is practicable after a change in group 
numbers, ensures compliance with legal requirements.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1 The report is written to comply with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the 
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 and is written in 
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution. Reviewing alternative 
arrangements and committee seat allocations is a matter reserved to the Council.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None directly.

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 UKIP (United Kingdom Independence Party)

Background papers:- None.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Lynn Eldred Lead Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number Tel: 01775 764626
Email: leldred@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Agenda Item 17.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Minutes
	10.a) Governance and Audit Committee 15 March 2018
	Minutes

	10.b) Planning Committee 10 April 2018
	Minutes
	 Appendix

	11. Key Decision Plan
	12. Constitution
	13. Political Group Regulations - Committee Seats Review
	17. South Holland Centre Planned Maintenance and Essential Remedial Works
	Appendix A South Holland Centre Works Analysis


